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FLORIDA DEPARTMENT 0f STATE

RON DESANTIS CORD BYRD
Governor Secretary of State

November 25, 2024

Ken Burke

Clerk of the Circuit Court
Pinellas County Courthouse
315 Court Street, 5 Floor
Clearwater, Florida 33756

Dear Ken Burke:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 125.66, Florida Statutes, this will acknowledge receipt of your
electronic copy of Pinellas County Ordinance No. 24-36, which was filed in this office on November 20,
2024.

Sincerely,

Alexandra Leijon
Administrative Code and Register Director

AL

R. A. Gray Building ¢ 500 South Bronough Street e Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0250
Telephone: (850) 245-6270



Eres, Christian L

From: County Ordinances <CountyOrdinances@dos.myflorida.com>
Sent: Monday, November 25, 2024 11:32 AM

To: Clerk Board Records; County Ordinances

Cc: Revie, Derelynn H; Hooey, Docia A

Subject: RE: PIN20241119_Ordinance2024_24-36

Attachments: Pinellas20241120_Ordinance24_36_Ack.pdf

This Message Is From an External Sender -
Report Suspicious

This message came from outside your organization.

Good morning,

Attached is the acknowledgement letter for Pinellas County Ordinance No. 24-36.

Best,

Alexandra Leijon

Administrative Code and Register Director
Office of General Counsel

Department of State

Room 701 The Capitol | Tallahassee, FL

P: (850)245-6270

From: Clerk Board Records <BoardRecords@mypinellasclerk.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, November 20, 2024 4:21 PM

To: County Ordinances <CountyOrdinances@dos.myflorida.com>

Cc: Clerk Board Records <BoardRecords@mypinellasclerk.gov>; Revie, Derelynn H <drevie@mypinellasclerk.gov>;
Hooey, Docia A <dhooey@mypinellasclerk.gov>

Subject: PIN20241119_Ordinance2024_24-36

EMAIL RECEIVED FROM EXTERNAL SOURCE

The attachments/links in this message have been scanned by Proofpoint.

Sender Full Name: Ken Burke, Clerk of the Circuit Court and Comptroller
Derelynn Revie, Deputy Clerk, Board Records Department
Sender Phone number: (727) 464-3458
County Name: Pinellas

Ordinance Number: PIN20241119_Ordinance2024_24-36




Thank you,

Christian Eres

Senior Board Records Specialist, Deputy Clerk

Board Records Department

Office of Ken Burke, Clerk of the Circuit Court and Comptroller
Pinellas County, Florida

315 Court Street, 5" Floor, Clearwater, FL. 33756

Office (727)464-4749 | Fax (727)464-4716

ceres(@ mypinellasclerk.gov | www.mypinellasclerk.gov

Tell us how we’re doing by filling out a comment card!

~Serving You~

| FRAUD #WJERT |

Sign up today and protect yourself from FRAUD!
Follow the Clerk:

Ty P

Please Note: All mail sent to and from Pinellas County is subject to the Public Records Laws of Florida




ORDINANCE NO. 24- 36

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY OF PINELLAS,
AMENDING SECTION 118-31 AND 118-32 OF THE
PINELLAS COUNTY CODE RELATING TO THE TOURIST
DEVELOPMENT TAX AND TOURIST DEVELOPMENT PLAN
ADDING A NEW CATEGORY OF STATUTORILY
ALLOWABLE USE OF TOURIST TAX REVENUES;
DELETING OBSOLETE PROVISIONS; INCREASING
AVAILABLE FUNDING FOR CERTAIN CATEGORY A
EVENTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING
FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR AREAS EMBRACED;
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, in accordance with Florida Statutes, Section 125.0104, the Board of County
Commissioners (“Board”), has previously adopted a Tourist Development Plan governing the use
and allocation of tourist tax revenues; and

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to expand the available uses of tourist development tax
revenues under the Tourist Development Plan to incorporate additional uses authorized by the
Statutes; and

WHEREAS, the Board’s approval and adoption of this amendment to the Tourist
Development Plan require a majority plus one vote, as required by Section 125.0104(4)(d),
Florida Statutes;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS OF PINELLAS COUNTY, FLORIDA, that:

SECTION 1. Subsection (a) of Section 118-31 of the Pinellas County Code is hereby amended to
provide as follows; all other provisions of Section 118-31 remain unchanged:

Sec. 118-31. Levied; collection and remittance; duties of county tax collector;
enforcement.

(a) Thereis hereby levied and imposed and set a tourist development tax
throughout the county at a rate of six percent of each whole and major fraction
of each dollar of the total rental charged every person who rents, leases, or lets
for consideration and living quarters or accommodations in any hotel, apartment
hotel, motel, resort hotel, apartment, apartment motel, roominghouse, tourist
or trailer camp, mobile home park, recreational vehicle park, timeshare
accommodation, or condominium for a term of six months or less. When receipt



of consideration is by way of property other than money, the tax shall be levied
and imposed on the fair market value of such nonmonetary considerations. The
six percent tourist development tax was levied as follows, and each percent will
be used as authorized by statute unless its use is specifically further limited by
the tourist development plan, section 118-32:

(1) The levy and the imposition of the first and second percent commenced on
the first day of the month following referendum approval in 1978, pursuant
to Ordinance No. 78-20.

(2) The levy of the third percent commenced on July 1, 1988, pursuant to
Ordinance No. 88-14.

(3) The levy and imposition of the fourth percent commenced on January 1,
1996, pursuant to Ordinance No. 95-35, and was subsequently extended by
Ordinance Nos. 10-67 and 14-55, until such time, if any, it is repealed.

(4) The levy and imposition of the fifth percent commenced on December 1,
2005, pursuant to Ordinance No. 05-47.

(5) The sixth percent commenced on January 1, 2016, pursuant to Ordinance
No. 15-31.

SECTION 2. Section 118-32 of the Pinellas County Code is hereby amended to provide as
follows:

Sec. 118-32. Use of revenues; tourist development plan.

(a) Tourist development plan. The tax revenues received pursuant to this article shall
be used to fund the Pinellas County tourist development plan hereby adopted as
follows; however, the board may, by a majority-plus-one vote, authorize other
allocations in accordance with statutory uses in instances when the Board of
County Commissioners or the Governor of the State of Florida has declared a state
of emergency:

(1) Categories of allowable uses of tax revenues:

a. Category A (promotions, advertising/marketing): Promoting and
advertising tourism in the state, nationally and internationally, and
funding for the following: (i) marketing special events and programs; (ii)
providing promotional or operating support for exhibits or programs
provided by museums owned and operated by not-for-profit
organizations and open to the public; (iii) providing promotional support
for zoological parks that are owned and operated by not-for-profit
organizations and open to the public; and (iv) event and program
sponsorships; however, funding of not more than $3,000,000.00 annually
for subsection (i), herein. Grant guidelines will be established by county



staff in consultation with the tourist development council, which shall be
subject to approval by the board of county commissioners, to determine
eligibility, the application process, and award criteria and priorities for
subsection (i), (ii), and (iii) funding herein.

Category B (CVB, promotions, advertising/marketing): Funding the St.
Petersburg/Clearwater Convention and Visitors Bureau; funding budget
reserves as authorized by law; and funding convention bureaus, tourist
bureaus, tourist information centers and news bureaus by contract with
the chambers of commerce or similar associations in Pinellas County.

Category C (beach improvement/nourishment): Funding beach
improvement, maintenance, renourishment, restoration and erosion
control.

Category D (capital funding/debt service other): Funding annually as
matching funds (applicants must have at least $1.00 for every $1.00 of
Category D tourist tax funding) to acquire, construct, extend, enlarge,
remodel, repair, improve, maintain, or provide debt service on one or
more: publicly owned and operated convention centers, coliseums, or
auditoriums; aquariums or museums that are publicly owned and
operated or owned and operated by not-for-profit organizations and
open to the public; sports stadium or arenas not eligible for Category E
funding below; and publicly owned and operated public facilities as
defined in § 125.0104(5)(a)6 that are directly associated with or
demonstrated to be tourist attractions (hereinafter referred to as
"eligible facilities").

All capital projects funded must be located within Pinellas County and
demonstrate the ability to attract tourists from the State of Florida,
nationally or internationally. Funding guidelines shall be established by
the tourist development council, which shall be subject to approval by
the board of county commissioners. These purposes may be
implemented through service contracts and leases with parties with
sufficient expertise or financial capabilities to operate such eligible
facilities.

Category E (debt service/professional sports and convention center capital
costs): Funding for debt service payments for bonds issued to finance the
construction, reconstruction, or renovation of any of the following
facilities: (i) a professional sports franchise facility located within Pinellas
County either publicly owned and operated, or publicly owned and
operated by the owner of a professional sports franchise or other lessee
with sufficient expertise or financial capability to operate such facility,
and to pay the planning and design costs incurred prior to the issuance of
such bonds; (ii) a retained spring training facility located within Pinellas
County either publicly owned and operated, or publicly owned and

3



operated by the owner of a professional sports franchise or other lessee
with sufficient expertise or financial capability to operate such facility,
and to pay the planning and design costs incurred prior to the issuance of
such bonds; or (iii) a convention center located within Pinellas County,
and to pay the planning and design costs prior to the issuance of such
bonds. Funding guidelines shall be established by the tourist
development council, which shall be subject to approval by the board of
county commissioners.

(2) Itistheintent of the board of county commissioners that the total tourist
development tax revenue shall be allocated as follows for the fiscal year in
which it is collected:

a. Sixty percent of the total tourist development tax revenue may be used
for Categories A and/or B and any monies not utilized accordingly shall
become reserves to be used for future Category A and/or B uses.

b. Forty percent of the total tourist development tax revenue may be used
for Categories C, D and E and any monies not utilized accordingly shall
become reserves to be used for future Categories C, D and/or E uses.

(b) Review of the plan. The tourist development council shall review the tourist
development plan at least every five years and forward its recommendations for
revisions, if any, to the plan to the board of county commissioners for
consideration. The board of county commissioners shall review the tourist
development plan recommendations and determine the most effective use of the
revenues derived from the tax.

(c) Amendment of the plan. The tourist development plan provided for in this section
may not be amended except by ordinance enacted by an affirmative vote of a
majority plus one additional member of the board of county commissioners.

SECTION 2. Severability. If any Section, Subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or
provision of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court of
competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not be construed to render the remaining provisions of
this Ordinance invalid or unconstitutional.

SECTION 3. Areas Embraced. This ordinance shall apply Countywide.

SECTION 4. Inclusion in Code. It is the intention of the Board of County
Commissioners that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made a part of the
Pinellas County Code and that the sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered or relettered
and the word “ordinance” may be changed to section, article or such other appropriate word or
phrase in order to accomplish such intentions.




SECTION 5. Filing of Ordinance; Effective Date. Pursuant to Section 125.66, Florida
Statutes, a certified copy of this Ordinance shall be filed with the Department of State by the
Clerk of the Board of County Commissioners within ten (10) days after enactment by the Board
of County Commissioners. This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing of the ordinance
with the Department of State.

APPROVED AS TO FORM
By: Amanda S. Coffey

Office of the County Attorney
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STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF PINELLAS

I, KEN BURKE, Clerk of the Circuit Court and Ex-officio Clerk to the Board
of County Commissioners, in and for the State and County aforesaid, DO HEREBY
CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of an Ordinance adopted by
the Board of County Commissioners of Pinellas County, Florida, on
November 19, 2024 relative to:

ORDINANCE NO. 24- 36_

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
AL TOWABLE USE OF TOURIST TAX REVENUES;
DELETING OBSOLETE PROVISIONS; INCREASING
AVAILABLE FUNDING FOR CERTAIN CATEGORY A
EVENTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING
FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR. AREAS EMBRACED:;
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | hereunto set my hand and official seal this
November 20, 2024

. KEN BURKE
e“(;\‘s;\”' lcio:,;", Clerk of the Circuit Court
St and Ex-officio Clerk to the
Sesf '-:‘Pa;'—_ Board of County Cemmissioners
21 SEAL :5: ] YR A
e S By /M%{ﬁm é@.ﬂx )
g raae s G E S Derelynn Revie, Deputy Clerk



Eres, Christian L

From: Clerk Board Records
Sent: Wednesday, November 20, 2024 4:19 PM
To: County Ordinances
Cc: Clerk Board Records; Revie, Derelynn H; Hooey, Docia A
Subject: PIN20241119_Ordinance2024_24-36
Attachments: PIN20241119_Ordinance2024_24-36.pdf
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

| FRAUD #LERT |

Sign up today and protect yourself from FRAUD!
Follow the Clerk:

Eige =

Please Note: All mail sent to and from Pinellas County is subject to the Public Records Laws of Florida
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